# St. Leonard's C.E. Primary School

## **Enjoy Success**



Welcome to St Leonard's School.

St. Leonard's CE Primary School encourages everyone to 'Enjoy Success' by embedding our Christian values in hearts and minds, within a nurturing, safe and inclusive environment, equipping our children to become global citizens.

We hope that our pupils' academic progress reflects their full potential but also that our pupils enjoy learning. The excellent Teaching and Support staff are committed to providing the means to stimulate learning and with your support our children will be successful.

St Leonard's pupils are also encouraged to participate in extra-curricular activities such as - sport/dance/Eco initiatives/Fair trade/music/charity involvement/cycling proficiency, to name but a few. We also have a School Council where pupils' views are listened to and school issues are discussed.

Underpinning the whole of school life are the Christian values that are vitally important to us as a Church of England School. Respect, love and care for each other, and for the world, are paramount in our school.

The whole 'St Leonard's School' experience will provide our children with the foundations on which to build their future.

The Governing Body, of which I am Chair, alongside the Head Teacher, leads the school to ensure that all academic and legal obligations are met and we are always pleased to hear your comments on how we can maintain the high standards recognised by Ofsted.

Jane Ashling
Chair of Governors

## Contents

Contents	2
MISSION STATEMENT	3
How is the school organised?	5
How do I get my child into school?	5
When does my child start school?	6
What happens if I move into the area?	6
What is the school trying to do?	7
What does my child need to wear?	8
What time does school start and finish?	9
Does the school have clubs or extended services?	10
How does my child join in?	10
How do I know what is going on?	10
How can I help my child?	10
How can I find out how my child is doing?	11
How is the school doing?	111
What can I do if I am not happy?	111
And Finally!	12
SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS	13
Access for the Disabled	15
SCHOOL ATTENDANCE	18
What should I do if my child is ill?	18
SAFEGUARDING	19
PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT	20
How can I help school?	20
SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICE	21
PROCEDURE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICINE IN SCHOOL	22
WHO'S WHO IN SCHOOL	23
SCHOOL GOVERNORS	24



## MISSION STATEMENT

St Leonard's Church of England Primary School

Recognising its historic foundation, St Leonard's Church of England Primary School will preserve and develop its religious character in accordance with the principles of the Church of England and in partnership with the church at parish and diocesan level.

The school aims to serve its community by providing an education of the highest quality within the context of Christian belief and practice. It encourages an understanding of the meaning and significance of faith and promotes Christian values through the experience it offers its pupils.

As a church school, the school will strive to promote the spiritual, moral, social, cultural, mental and physical development of ALL of the pupils. It will at the same time strive to prepare its pupils for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of adult life by placing an inherent and equal value on each person involved in the life of the school whether they are child or adult.

## **Our Vision**

We at St. Leonard's school believe that we are part of God's family, following the example of Jesus Christ, and strive to put into action St. Paul's teaching on the Fruit of the Spirit -

"love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness and self-control" Galatians 5. 22-23

St. Leonard's C.E. Primary School encourages everyone to 'Enjoy Success' through a stimulating curriculum in a happy, safe and exciting environment, which is celebrated by all. We will continuously build upon these foundations by focusing on quality, effectiveness and achievement, underpinned by strong Christian values.

#### INFORMATION ABOUT THE SCHOOL

St Leonard's CE Primary is an Academy and part of the Trust-Ed CSAT Alliance. This Alliance consists of 4 Primary Schools and 5 Secondary Schools.

The school itself is on two sites side by side. The Key Stage 1 site has a Reception Area, Offices, 5 classrooms, a Nursery, a small computer suite, a Hall, Library area, Music Room and a wide shared area. The Key Stage 2 site has 7 classrooms, a Hall, 2 resource rooms, a computer suite and a kitchen for school meals. Like all schools nowadays the safety of our pupils is paramount and, as such, the school is very security conscious.

There is a heated, covered swimming pool in the grounds of the school. All the pupils in the school use it during the Summer term. The pool was built by parents and is still managed by a parents committee. The maintenance of the pool is paid for by parental contributions, the swimming lessons, which take place in school time, are free. We also organise extra lessons after school, but there is a charge for these. School employ a fully qualified instructor to take all the lessons, both in the school day and after school.

## How is the school organised?

The school consists of a full-time Nursery which, combined with the Reception class, forms the Foundation Stage; a Key Stage 1 section and a Key Stage 2 Section. The Admission Number (or maximum number of pupils the school can admit in one year) is 48.

Pupils with Special Educational Needs are fully integrated into the classes and are counted in the numbers above.

#### How do I get my child into school?

Parents of children wishing to start school at St Leonard's have to complete an on-line application through the Local Authority before the child is due to start. Parents of Reception children in Shropshire will be required, in the Autumn term prior to the school year of admission, to complete a Shropshire Council application form stating preferences for up to 3 schools. Applications for places in Reception should be made online at <a href="https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/school-admissions">www.shropshire.gov.uk/school-admissions</a>. For those who do not have internet access you can contact the Admissions Team direct on 0345 678 9008 and they will submit the application for you. If you do not submit an application before the deadline, it can delay your child starting school or, if the school is full, prevent them starting altogether.

The admissions policy is determined by St Leonard's CE Primary's Local Governing Body, in line with Trust-Ed CSAT Alliance and the Local Authority. This policy can be found on our website. A paper copy is available in school for you to look at also.

## When does my child start school?

The law says that children must start their education no later than the beginning of the term after their 5<sup>th</sup> birthday. The following table helps to explain by dates of birth when children can start their primary age education.

5 <sup>th</sup> birthdays falls	Can start school on first day of	Must start school on first day of
Between 1 September and 31 December	Autumn Term (September)	Spring Term (January)
Between 1 January and last day of Easter holidays	Autumn Term (September) or Spring Term (January)	Summer Term (after Easter break)
1 <sup>st</sup> day of Summer Term and 31 August	Autumn Term, (September), or Spring Term (January), or Summer Term (after Easter Break) or following Autumn Term*	Summer Term (after Easter break) or following Autumn Term*

<sup>\*</sup>Where parents choose to defer entry for children whose 5<sup>th</sup> birthday falls in the Summer term to the following Autumn term, the child would be required to join the school in Year 1, not Reception. Parents must apply separately for a Year 1 place which could only be considered for allocation after the summer half-term holiday by which time there might not be any places available in the year group.

Full details are set out in the Parents' Guide to Education in Shropshire as mentioned above.

Before admission to Reception, children can be admitted to our Nursery in the term after their third birthday, provided we have spaces.

You will need to have your child's name down for a Nursery place before they start. A Nursery Enquiry form is available from the school office together with our Nursery Admissions Policy which details the provision, and options, available to you. Once your child becomes eligible for a place, we will write to you with the options available. We will try our very best to accommodate your first choice, but this cannot be guaranteed. You must confirm that you wish to take this place. Full details of the provision, and options, are also available on our website — <a href="https://www.stleonardsprimary.co.uk">www.stleonardsprimary.co.uk</a> under the header: Information — School Admissions. It is not necessary to attend our Nursery before coming to school, but it is very helpful. A brochure describing the Nursery is available from the school. Just ask!

The school has an admission number of 48 for each group and the Reception intake.

## What happens if I move into the area?

Where families move house at other times of the year, please make contact with us direct to enquire about places. The Head will then be able to make an appointment to show you around.

## What is the school trying to do?

This question can be answered by asking and answering three more questions.

The first of these asks: **What is the school trying to achieve as a Church school?** The answer is in the schools Mission Statement which is included at the front of this booklet. It explains how the school hopes to function and put its Christian beliefs into its every day work.

Please note that any parents wishing their children to withdraw from any religious activities on moral grounds are asked to contact the Head Teacher in the first instance. Alternative activities can then be arranged.

## The second asks: What does the school stand for and what values does it hope to give the children?

The aim of our school is to help all pupils to enjoy learning and come to see education as a lifelong process.

To do this we try to make our pupils "independent learners". This means they are able to work on their own and accept the responsibility for getting their work finished. To be able to do this means they will have to develop the right attitudes, knowledge, understanding and skills they will need for the future.

For us as a school to be able to do this we must:

- provide a happy, secure and stimulating environment where each child can be helped to develop a lively enquiring mind, tolerance and an understanding of others
- enable the children to acquire the correct skills they will need for the future
- help all pupils to achieve their full potential and feel valued as individuals
- encourage pupils to develop self-respect and respect for others
- provide a learning environment which encourages children to work collaboratively and cooperatively in a variety of situations
- develop the qualities of independence, self-motivation and self-confidence
- encourage all parents to become actively involved in all aspects of school life and to create a working partnership with them
- help pupils to understand and appreciate the world in which they live and appreciate the efforts and achievements of others
- participate in local events when appropriate to make sure our pupils are aware of the local community and community spirit

The third question asks: What is the school trying to achieve and what should your child know, think and do?

As a school we aim to provide our pupils with a secure and stable environment which is stimulating, colourful, challenging and enjoyable. There are clear boundaries set out that the

children learn not to cross and easy systems and routines to learn and follow. The work we provide is differentiated to each child's individual needs. This gives them a firm foundation on which to build. Pupils are encouraged to be individuals and also part of a group. They are taught to respect other people's feelings and property as much as their own. Most of all we aim to make the pupils feel safe, valued and respected.

Your child should leave this school confident that they are able to move on to the next stage of their education. They should have the skills to enable them to do this. They will also have the knowledge that they have achieved all that they are capable of doing and be ready to move on. They should enjoy learning and the activities that go with it. As people they will respect others, have a concern for their immediate environment and a wish to learn more.

#### What does my child need to wear?

The school does have a school uniform that it insists pupils wear. This consists of:-

Boys Girls

White polo shirt

Grey Trouser

White polo shirt

Grey Trousers/ Grey skirt

Grey trousers Grey Dress

Maroon sweatshirt or jumper

Black shoes

Black shoes

Grey shorts (Summer optional)

Maroon sweatshirt/ Jumper or cardigan

Red /white squared patterned dress (Summer

optional)

Please note: School shoes must be plain black. Branded trainers with logos in different colours are not suitable.

### **PE Boys and Girls**

Maroon polo shirt
Black shorts or jogging bottoms
Suitable trainers or pumps
Maroon jumper or school sweatshirt for winter

All these items with the school logo on can be bought through the school supplier online at: <a href="http://shop.schooluniformfactory.co.uk/">http://shop.schooluniformfactory.co.uk/</a> or plain from many other sources. The school also offers the opportunity to purchase maroon coloured fleeces for outdoor wear although this is not a compulsory part of the school uniform.

#### **Jewellery**

Items of jewellery should not be worn to school. This includes the wearing of rings, bracelets and earrings. If your child has pierced ears, they should only wear studs in them and no other style of earring whilst in school. This is to avoid the tearing of the earlobe if the earrings get caught in clothing, etc. or when children are playing. For PE the children should preferably be able to remove the studs and replace them, or, failing that, should bring plasters or some form of covering to avoid accidents whilst taking part in any of the games activities.

#### **Mobile Phones and Smart Watches**

Mobile phones are not permitted in school unless a Parent and Head Teacher contract has been signed. This will be for exceptional circumstances only. Smart watches are not permitted to be warn in school.

#### What time does school start and finish?

#### **Timetable of School Day**

8.45 am	Pupils into school and register
	taken
9.10am	Morning Register closed
10.30am	Whole School Worship
10.45 to	Break time
11am	
11.30 to	Nursery lunch
12.30 pm	
12.15pm	School Lunchtime begins
1.15pm	School Lunchtime ends
1.25pm	Afternoon register closed
3.15pm	School ends

Each school day is 6.5 hours. This means that there is a total time of 32.5 hours over the week.

The Nursery opens at 8.30am for the morning session and ends at 11.30am. The afternoon session starts at 12.30pm and ends at 3.30pm.

We would ask that parents encourage their children to be on time as this saves upset if the child arrives in school late. All lateness is recorded and when a child is regularly late parents are contacted and a strategy worked out to avoid this. A copy of our Attendance Policy is available from the Office.

#### Does the school have clubs or extended services?

The school runs a wide range of lunchtime and after school clubs. All the clubs are open to anyone of the right age range who wants to attend. Enjoying the activity is the main aim. However, there are a number of opportunities for pupils with a talent in any of these activities to develop them further should they wish. There is a nominal charge for clubs.

#### The range of clubs –

Vov Stage 1

Key Stage 1	Key Stage 2	Key Stage 2		
Recorders	Football (Boys and Girls teams)	Gardening Club		
Danco	Tag Rughy	Newspaper club		

Newspaper club Dance Tag Rugby Multi-skills Cricket (Mixed) School Choir (Yrs 1-6) Football Rounders (Mixed) Swimming lessons

Swimming lessons **Athletics** Dance

Newspaper club Basketball Netball

School does offer before and after school Wraparound – Little Lenny's. This operates from 7.30am. up to the start of school and then after school until 5.30 p.m. We can also refer you to the Shropshire Council list of recommended child-minders and/or Poppets who are based on our site.

## How does my child join in?

Lists of clubs, dates and payment details can be found on ParentPay, which is an online payment system.

We are a cashless school and use Parent Pay for Meals, Clubs and Trips etc. New pupils will be provided with login details once your child has been admitted into school.

## How do I know what is going on?

The school tries hard to keep parents informed through our 'Weekly What's On' of all the activities that are going on. These can be found on our website. A copy of every letter, about any event, is on the website and is kept in a folder in the Reception area and you are very welcome to come into school at any time to have a look. If families do not have access to the internet paper copies of the WWO, and any letters, are provided.

## How can I help my child?

The school does have a Homework policy, which is available to all parents. This tells you about the many ways that you can help your child as they move through the school and also includes a helpful guide to undertaking many of the activities your child will be asked to do at home.

Every child has a Home School diary which contains lots of ideas for help with numeracy and literacy skills. This diary also contains information about your child's targets for literacy and numeracy and should be signed when you have made a note of these.

We follow guidelines issued by the County Educational Welfare Officer regarding holidays in term time (please see separate section). As you can appreciate holidays in term time can cause great disruption to your child's education.

## How can I find out how my child is doing?

The school usually provides lots of opportunities for you to find out how your child is doing. Parents are able to make contact with the class teacher, throughout the year at any time, to discuss their child's progress.

## How is the school doing?

As a parent you can see how well the school is doing by reading the latest OFSTED report - there is a link on our website or you can go to <a href="www.ofsted.gov.uk">www.ofsted.gov.uk</a>. A paper copy can be provided if needed. The website also includes information on how well the school has done in the Standard Assessment Tests (SATS) set by the Government each year.

## What can I do if I am not happy?

Under the Education Act 1996, Trust-Ed CSAT Alliance has set up arrangements to deal with any formal complaints made. These are dealt with by each individual school, following the Complaints Policy. These complaints can be about the curriculum or Religious Education. Should you need to know more about how to make a complaint please refer to our web site and look at the Complaints Policy. Should you need a paper copy please contact the School Office. If you have a complaint or concern about something which has nothing to do with the curriculum or Religious Education, please contact me as Head Teacher first of all and I will discuss the matter with you there and then, or at a time that is mutually convenient. If it proves impossible to sort out an issue in this way please put the complaint in writing and send it to me at the school. If you require help in doing this we will as a school offer all help possible. Once your complaint is received the school promises to deal with it in the following way:

- We will formally acknowledge receipt of the complaint within two working days of receiving it.
- Tell you the name of and telephone number of the person looking into it.
- Reply to your complaint within 21 school working days or, if it is not possible to give you a full
  answer by then, to tell you what is being done to investigate your complaint and how long it is
  likely to be before you receive a full reply.
- Tell you if it has to be dealt with under a special procedure.

If you are not then satisfied with the outcome of your complaint you can write to the Chair of Governors who will arrange for the Governing Body to look into what you have to say. Should you still not be satisfied and want to take the matter further you can contact the Chief Executive Head of Trust-Ed CSAT Alliance.

#### Contact

Sarah.godden@trustedcsat.co.uk

Address: Oldbury Wells, Bridgnorth WV16 5JD

Phone: 01746 765454

A full copy of the schools Complaints Policy is available from the school office.

Certain documents are made available under the Education Regulations of 1989 so that you are able to use these if you wish. They are normally available in the school office for you to look at on site. Should you wish to take a copy away then a small charge to cover the cost of copying will be made.

If you are not happy with your child's performance please tell your child's teacher of your worries. They will be very willing to discuss them with you at a time that is convenient to both of you.

If you are still not happy please contact me and tell me about your concerns. I will look into them and report back to you. If necessary a meeting between you, the Class teacher and me, will be set up to look at the problems you raise. Most issues can be sorted out with a little willingness on both sides.

## And Finally!

There are probably things that we have missed out as we have written this prospectus. Please forgive us if we haven't answered your question. The booklet is intended to give you a flavour of our school. Like a good menu we hope it has tempted you to come and visit us and see for yourself. We would enjoy showing you round and answering those questions this booklet doesn't answer. To arrange a visit, please call me at the school on 01746 762781 (2 lines) or e-mail us at <a href="mailto:admin@stleonardsprimary.co.uk">admin@stleonardsprimary.co.uk</a> Until then thank you for taking the time and trouble to read this information. We look forward to meeting you.

Luke Bridges Head Teacher

#### SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS PROVISION

We pride ourselves as a school that treats all children equally irrespective of their ability. The school strives to ensure that children with Special Educational Needs are integrated into every aspect of school life. Committed staff and support assistants continue to provide a quality provision for these children within school. Following a County led Special Needs review, St. Leonard's was deemed to provide good support and inclusion for all children with Special Needs.

Before any child with Special Needs is admitted to school a detailed programme of induction and support is agreed between parents, school and other professionals who may also be involved. We also follow County Guidelines for admission to school for all children.

## What happens if my child has a problem with learning?

For pupils with learning difficulties, and that includes some 20% of all pupils at some stage in their school life, we have a Learning Support Team. This consists of a Special Educational Needs and Disability Coordinator (SENDCo) working closely with Classroom Support Assistants and Class Teachers to develop individual programmes of work for children with Special Needs. The whole team are well trained and our SENDCo holds the National Diploma for SEND. This Team works closely together, and in partnership with parents, to support pupils who are finding their learning difficult, whether this is long term or just for a short period. Any child with SEN will be given support within the classroom setting. Should they need 1 to 1 support, or small group support, this will be planned for by the Class Teacher. The Class Teacher will employ a range of strategies depending on your child's needs and will differentiate the work accordingly. They will take on board any advice from other professionals and incorporate this, as and when appropriate. The Support Assistants will be guided by the Class Teacher.

Each term all children are assessed and their progress is monitored. Every Class Teacher meets with the Head to discuss Pupil Progress and exactly what is being provided to support them within the classroom. Should there be a dip in progress then we will work with you to identify the reasons for this and then, via an Individual Education Plan, build in specific targets for your child to achieve to secure improvement.

To enable us to manage all the arrangements and plans, ensuring continuity for each child, we keep a Register of Educational Needs. Pupils are placed on the register when it is felt that they are struggling with their work. They can be placed on at 2 different levels.

#### SEN 1

At its lower level a child is given work more suited to help them with their specific problem and a regular check on their progress is kept, as outlined previously. The members of the Support Team work with many of the pupils in this group and children can move quite easily in and out of this stage.

At the higher levels it also includes children who have been receiving the above help but have shown little or no progress. At this point the child is seen by the SENDCO, a member of the school

staff holding the National Diploma for SEN, who will offer additional guidance to the class teacher and often arrange some additional support for the pupil.

#### SEN 2

This is the point where the school seeks help from additional professionals employed by the LA and outside agencies. They will assess your child using a series of tests, share the results with you and your child's teacher and suggest to the school a range of strategies to assist your child. Progress will be looked at termly.

Pupils at this level who make little or no progress or whose level of performance is very significantly behind the rest of the children of their age are proposed for assessment to see whether they need an **Education and Health Care Plan (EHCP)**. This is done by a team from the LA and if the EHCP is granted the child receives additional amounts of help outlined in the Plan, from the Learning Support Team. At all levels the school is given advice and information that will enable it to do the best for your child.

At all times during this process the school will share with you what they know and work with you to obtain the best help for your child. They will also advise you on activities that you can do at home to help your child.

#### **Medical Provision**

Should any child need specific medical provision our staff will work with the Medical Professional team to support them. This may involve specific training and advice for our staff. This will usually be accessed prior to your child's admission to school or in tandem. It is important to us that we work with you, as part of our team, to ensure that everyone is kept informed.

#### **Emotional and Social Development**

Children who have learning difficulties can also have emotional and social difficulties, often due to a possible lack of confidence and/or self-esteem. Some children don't have specific learning needs but may have social and emotional needs which can get in the way of their academic progress as well as their general attitude to school.

Staff will again work with parents, and possibly other outside agencies such as BEE-U (Emotional health and well-being(, CAMHS-(Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service), to support any child who is suffering from any of these anxieties. We have a very robust PSHE programme of work within school that all year groups follow. On top of this we use ELSA trained staff (Emotional Literacy Support) and respond to any professional advice given. We can refer children and families to family support workers as part of Shropshire Early Help process, who can work with your child at home as well as in school, bolstering their confidence, promoting positive attitudes to increase their self-esteem. Key members of staff will be asked to support some children who need 'talk time' during the day. This is a secure time where the child can feel safe to chat.

#### Access for the Disabled

## **Buildings**

The school continues to maintain its commitment to providing access for pupils, parents and visitors with a range of disabilities. Disabled toilet facilities are available on both sites and ramped access available throughout both sites. These facilities are a useful addition to the school providing access not only for disabled staff, parents and pupils but also for other visitors using the school for a range of activities. The school with its continuing policy of "total inclusion" of pupils with Special Educational Needs can be truly said to be fully inclusive.

#### Curriculum

All Teachers plan and adapt the curriculum to suit every individual child's needs. Teaching Assistants work closely with the Class Teacher in every class, each morning, to enable all pupils to access all areas of curriculum. Where children carry an **EHCP** a specific Support Assistant is identified and works with the child on a one to one basis and where appropriate in small groups. All activities are modified to ensure that every child feels included. Sports staff have been trained to modify their activities also.

#### **Policies and Plans**

A full Accessibility Plan is available in school for those who wish to read it. This outlines current arrangements and future intentions. Also available, for those who wish to read a copy, are the school Disability Equality and Gender Equality Schemes. The SEND Policy is also available.

#### Resources

All resources, both consumable and non-consumable are monitored on a regular basis and updated/upgraded as necessary.

The Governor with responsibility for overseeing SEND is Mrs Julia Buckley.

#### How will my child be supported when moving on to Secondary School?

When any child reaches year 6 we work closely with the Secondary School which you have chosen for them to attend. If your child has special needs then extra support sessions are built in to ensure that they feel comfortable, confident and ready for their next steps. A plan is drawn up and shared with you and your child, alongside meetings with the Secondary School SENDCo. This means that continuity can be preserved.

If your child is on the Autistic spectrum then we can access extra support for transition from Woodlands Outreach

#### **Woodlands Outreach**

"The outreach service is well led and managed, and is highly regarded by schools. It is effective in providing training and support for schools with pupils who have learning and behaviour difficulties, and for pupils with autism. The service helps to prevent exclusions in other schools. " (Woodlands School, Ofsted 2015)

Woodlands Outreach Service provides integrated support for pupils who present with SEMH (Social, Emotional, mental health), Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) and Learning Needs across the county.

In addition to supporting individual children the service offers qualified, experienced, and highly respected staff who can also provide a range of support, materials and training for schools and professionals. The Outreach Service has the inclusive agenda at its heart, ensuring wherever possible that children remain educated in a mainstream setting.

Autism, Learning & Behaviour services can be offered to schools in Shropshire, including Telford and surrounding areas.

#### What do I do if I'm not happy with the provision made for my child?

If you are unhappy for whatever reason then, in the first instance, we would ask you to talk things through with your child's Teacher. If you are still unhappy then ask to meet the Head Teacher. Quite often things can be resolved quickly through this informal route.

If you remain dissatisfied, then you should follow our complaints procedure as outlined on our website.

## Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin IASS can also help

Telford and Wrekin IASS	Shropshire IASS
Suite 12 & 15 Hazeldine House	C/o Citizens Advice Shropshire
Central Square	Fletcher House, 15 College Hill
Telford Centre	Shrewsbury
Telford	Shropshire
TF3 4JL	SY1 1LY
Website: Shropshire IASS - IASS	Website: Shropshire IASS - IASS
(iassnetwork.org.uk)	(iassnetwork.org.uk)
Email: info@iass.org.uk	Email: iass@shcab.cabnet.org.uk
Telephone: 01952 457176	Telephone: 01743 280019

Shropshire Information, Advice and Support Service (IASS), provides free, confidential and impartial information, advice and support around Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, including health and social care. Support is offered from initial concerns about a possible SEN and disability, through to complex information and advice. Workshops, leaflets, support groups, training and other services are available, as well as 1 to 1 support. Children, young people, and parents / carers of children and young people aged 0 to 25 are supported. Also, Shropshire Information, Advice and Support Service (IASS) can provide an Independent Supporter (an independent person to help you transfer to the new system).

If you are a parent with a child at school, or a young person up to the age of 25, and you are looking for practical help with special educational needs procedures, or you just want someone to listen.

Also this weblink to Shropshire local offer -

https://www.shropshire.gov.uk/the-send-local-offer/

#### **Transition**

Children who join our school in Nursery are welcomed into our school community with a preschool visit by the Nursery class teacher. In their first term parents, or a significant adult e.g. grandparent, aunt, uncle, are asked to join each child in an Induction week.

Children who join our school in Reception are welcomed into our school via an Induction week in the July before each child starts in September. This consists of two half days and two full days in school with their new teacher as well as a Parents' meeting. If your child is in our Nursery, the Reception staff will make regular visits in the Summer term, before starting, to get to know them. If they are in a different setting then our staff will visit them there.

Our Local Authority provides an Early Years' Advisory Teacher who supports children with SEN when they make the transition from their current setting to our Reception class.

Transition to each successive year group, is supported by staff meetings, where relevant information will be passed on along with our Parents' meetings. Children also have a 'meet the 'teacher'/'moving on' time at the end of each term.

Year 2 children will spend time in our KS 2 building becoming more familiar with their surroundings and routines. Their Parents are also invited to meet the teachers and get to know the building.

We liaise very closely with our partner secondary schools to ensure that the transition from our school to the secondary school is as smooth as possible.

The secondary school SENDCO meets with our Year Six teacher and SENDCO to discuss the pupil's individual needs. Additional transition days are also arranged where necessary and support assistants accompany children to these.

Parents and children who are joining our school mid-term are encouraged to visit the school before they start.

We contact and receive information from the previous school to ensure a smooth and supportive start to life in our school.

#### What do I do if I am not happy?

In the first instance parents should speak to the class teacher. If you are still not happy then you should speak to the SENDCo. After this, if any issues remain unresolved, you should meet with the Head. Please also refer to our Complaints Procedure.

#### **SCHOOL ATTENDANCE**

## What should I do if my child is ill?

If your child is ill you should contact school by telephone and leave a message by 10am. When leaving your message please state child's name, class, and reason for absence.

If we do not receive any explanation from you by 10am, the school will make contact. You must call every morning that your child is absent from school. If you are worried about whether your child should be in school or not, please ring school as we have a list of illnesses which require pupils to be kept from school. At the same time please do not send your child to school if they are ill as illnesses can spread very quickly to the other pupils and a class teacher with 25 - 30 other pupils can't give your child the support and comfort you can at home. Please note that we do follow guidelines issued by the County Health Authority which require children to remain at home for 48 hours after the last bout of any sickness or diarrhoea. All pupils' absences are monitored and the Educational Welfare Officer deals with any pattern or long period of absence.

This might seem a lot of trouble to go to but it is in the pupil's interest that both you and we know where they are and whether they are arriving at school after you have sent them. A copy of your child's attendance for the year will be included in the report you receive in the spring term.

HOLIDAYS IN TERM TIME

County Guidelines

STOP - PAUSE - THINK

about the effect holidays in term time has on your child!

Holidays taken during the school term are no longer allowed following Government legislation.

Whilst it is recognised that there are exceptional circumstances when leave during the term may be requested, parents are asked to carefully consider the effects upon their children in respect of learning and relationships.

If leave of absence is to be requested parents must complete an application form well in advance of the leave. The following points will be considered prior to authorising the request:

- The child's previous attendance history
- The age of the child
- The child's stage of education
- The time of year (SATS, exams etc)
- The nature of the trip (exceptional circumstances)

Leave of absence will not be granted retrospectively. If the request has been refused by the Head Teacher and the parents proceed with the absence, this will be recorded as unauthorised and the Education Welfare Service will be informed. In this instance the Local Authority may serve a Fixed Penalty Notice.

## **SAFEGUARDING**

St Leonard's CE Primary School is committed to all aspects of safeguarding and follows guidelines laid out by Shropshire LA and the Shropshire Safeguarding Children's Board (SSCB).

The school aims to help parents understand that the school, like all others, has a duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of all pupils. The school may need to share information and work in partnership with other agencies when there are concerns about a pupil's welfare.

#### PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT

## How can I help school?

Parents can help school in a number of ways. Probably the most important way is to take an interest in what your child does at school and to celebrate when they have done things well. After that comes helping your child with any work sent home from school. This may be hearing them read, helping learn tables or just making sure work is done. This strengthens the partnership between school and home.

Within school we have a Parental support group called FOSLS (Friends Of St Leonard's School). This consists of two groups or sub committees. Please visit our FOSLs Facebook page to find out more.

## **FOSLS** (PTA)

This is a group of Parents and Staff responsible for providing support on a financial level. They organise a range of fundraising activities throughout the year. All schools need help with fund raising; supporting the activities of FOSLS (PTA) is a very positive way you as a parent can help this school. The events are fun and family orientated and you may even be tempted to join the committee.

## **FOSLS** (Swimming Pool)

The Swimming Pool is a school pool – built by parents for the children at St Leonard's. As such the maintenance and upkeep of the Pool is a school responsibility. **FOSLS** support by raising funds to meet the bills for running the pool and undertake much of the work that needs to be done.

As a school we also appreciate any extra help we can get in the classroom. This is a way in which many of our parents help. They volunteer to come into school and help with a wide range of activities. These activities help to create a strong bond between school and home. We ask that all volunteers have a full DBS check and all the details necessary to obtain this are available at the office.

#### **SCHOOL HEALTH SERVICE**

During your child's first term in the Reception Class, they will be offered a health check, including a measurement of height and weight and a hearing test which will be carried out by the School Nurse. Your child will also have a vision test carried out by an Orthoptist. During Year 6, your child will be offered height and weight screening by the School Nurse as part of the national initiative to monitor obesity levels. You will be asked to give your consent before these procedures take place.

If you have any concerns about your child's health, including bedwetting, soiling or behaviour at home, you can contact the School Nurse via the local practice, who will be pleased to discuss those concerns with you and arrange to see you and your child if this would be helpful.

#### PROCEDURE FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICINE IN SCHOOL

Medicine can only be administered in school where it has been prescribed by a doctor or other appropriately qualified health care professional e.g. the Pharmacist (in this case the Pharmacist should print the dosage on the medicine.)

Before we can administer any medication, whether it be creams for allergies, allergy tablets, antibiotics, etc. we must have a form completed by parents, stating the reasons for giving the medicine, the amounts to be given and how often. Health and Safety regulations prevent us from administering any medication without the completion of this form.

Forms are available from the school office and must be completed at the same time or prior to you handing over the medication. All medications whatever they are for need to be handed in to the office and should not be left in a child's bag or in the child's care during school hours.

Medicines must be in the original bottle/packaging in which it was prescribed. It should be clearly labelled with:

- the pupil's name
- the contents
- the dosage
- the date

When a course of medication is complete or where medication needs to return home at the end of each day you must ensure that it is collected by a responsible person. In the case of asthma inhalers, pupils using an inhaler to relieve asthma symptoms should carry that on their person at all times. All other spare asthma inhalers should be stored safely in the school office or staffroom with a covering medical form (as per our Asthma Policy – see website for details).

In general, medication will only be administered where it is the completion of a course of antibiotics, where there is no other reason for the child being kept from school and when it is a long-term medication aimed at controlling a specific illness. If your child is unwell and requires a complete course of antibiotics, then the best place for them, certainly in the early stages, is to be at home with you. The same applies where short-term medication needs to be administered at a specific time. We cannot guarantee to be able to meet the requirement for medication to be given at a very specific time and would therefore suggest that such medication is either administered at home or that you come into school to administer it yourself at the appropriate time.

In the vast majority of cases the timings for antibiotics and other medicines are such that a 3 times a day course can be administered first thing in a morning when a child comes home and at the end of the day before they go to bed. Using such timings does not reduce the effectiveness of the medication but does ensure that the child does not have it administered in school.

Where any medication is administered by the school we will endeavour to see that the medication is administered at some point during the lunch-break but this cannot, with the demands on lunchtime supervisors and teaching staff, be guaranteed.

We do not object to administering medication but do have to make sure that Health and Safety requirements are met and that such a task does not become a heavy burden tor busy staff to remember. If you have any particular worries or concerns about medication that your child needs, please contact school so that the issue can be discussed.

## WHO'S WHO IN SCHOOL TEACHING STAFF

Mr Bridges	Head Teacher	RE, MFL, CPD and Music Co- ordinator; Child Protection and LAC Officer, Safeguarding, DSL
Mrs C Allen	Year R EYFS Co-ordinator	Early Years, Geography and Forest School
Mrs D Berry	Year 1	History Co-Ordinator
Mrs P Ashling	Year 2	Maths and Assessment Co- ordinator; DSL
Miss M George	Year 2	
Mrs R Spencer	Deputy Head – Year 3	SEN; Early Help: DSL
Mrs Carter-Rix	Year 3	PSHE Co-ordinator
Mrs E Thomason	Year 3/ 4	Science Co-ordinator
Miss S Meredith	Year 4	Design and Technology and Art Co-ordinator
Miss Rogers	Year 5	ICT Co-ordinator
Miss C Howell	Year 5/6	PE Co-ordinator
Mrs C Weaver	Year 6	English and P4C Co-ordinator: DSL

## **ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF and CARETAKER**

Miss K Weston	Office Manager	
Miss K McSorley	Senior Administrator	
Miss E Hebbard	Apprentice	
Mr A Day	Caretaker and Swimming Pool Manager	

## **SUPPORT and TEACHING ASSISTANTS**

Mr D Barlow	Mrs F Bridgwater	
Mrs R Colburn	Mrs D Cox	Mrs S Crosby
Mrs P Dempsey	Mrs K Halpin	Mrs N Pitt
Miss K Lindop	Mrs C Lloyd-Bowen	Miss R Quinton
Mrs S Pitt	Miss M Quinn	
Miss Van Herpt	Mrs J Thomas	

## **LUNCHTIME SUPERVISORS**

Mrs C Lloyd-Bowen- Lunchtime Supervisor in Charge
Mrs P Dempsey
Miss E Hebbard
Mrs C Shiel
Mrs C Turner
Mrs L Tacchi
Mrs J Walsh
Mrs K Lindop

## **SCHOOL GOVERNORS**

Jane Ashling Chair of Governors (Foundation)
Michael Steele Vice Chair of Governors (Trust Appointed Governor)
Luke Bridges Head Teacher (Ex Officio)

Vacancy – to be appointed by Diocese	Foundation (Church)	Mrs Julia Buckley	Co-opted Parent Governor
Mrs Rose Patey	Foundation (Church)	Mrs Rebecca Ashman	Parent Governor
Vacancy	Foundation (Church)	Mrs Ruth Spencer	Co-opted
Mr Chris Jew	Trust Appointed Governor	Miss Jessie Boulton	Staff Governor

Governors can be contacted via the school.

## **Privacy Policy Summary**

St Leonard's CE Primary School considers the privacy of its users to be a serious issue. Please read the following to learn more about our privacy policy. For our full 48-page Privacy Policy please see our website. St Leonard's CE Primary School is an organisation based in the United Kingdom.

#### What this privacy policy covers

This policy covers how St Leonard's CE Primary School treats personal information that St Leonards CE Primary School collects and receives, including information to your past use of our website. Personal information is information about you that is personally identifiable like you name, address, email address or phone number, and that is not otherwise publicly available.

This policy does not apply to the practices of organisations that we do not control, or to people that we do not employ or manage.

#### Information collection and use

General

St Leonard's CE Primary School collects personal information whenever a user chooses to contact us via the web form within the contact us section.

When contacting us using this method we ask for information such as your name, e-mail address and telephone number. St Leonard's CE Primary School automatically receives and records information on our server logs from your browser, including your IP address, St Leonard's CE Primary School cookie information, and the page you request.

We use information for the following general purposes: to customise the content you see, fulfil your requests and for technical website administration purposes.

## Information sharing and disclosure

We do not rent, sell or share personal information about you with other people or non-affiliated organisation except to provide products or services you've requested when we have your permission.

We will use reasonable efforts to ensure that your personal data is not disclosed to regional/national institutions and authorities, unless required by law or other regulations.

### Changes to this privacy policy

We may update this policy. We will notify you about significant changes in the way we treat personal information by placing a prominent notice on our website.

#### Privacy support and contact information

If you have any questions or suggestions, please contact us.